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AGENCY WORKERS:
KNOW YOUR RIGHTS
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This leaflet is designed to give general advice on the law
covering the conduct of employment agencies operating in Great
Britain. As an agency worker, it’s important to know your rights
and the rules about the way agencies should treat you and what
you should do if you wish to make a complaint.
This leaflet can only cover the main points and it is not an
authoritative interpretation of the law.
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What is an employment agency?
‘Employment agency’ or ‘agency’ is a general term used to cover
two specific types of work-finding activity:

 Can’t

make you use fee-paying services (eg CV writing) as a
requirement for finding you work.

Your rights on services that an agency can charge you for:

An ‘employment agency’ finds work for work-seekers who are
employed and paid by employers. This is often referred to as
‘permanent employment’ as once the worker has been taken on,
they are an employee of the company they are working for.

 If

An ‘employment business’ employs or engages a work-seeker
under a contract who in turn works under the supervision of
another person. This is known as ‘temporary agency work’ or
‘temping’. The workers under these arrangements will be paid by
the agency rather than by the company they are supplied to.

 If

The conduct regulations – what you
should know
What agencies can and cannot do by law
An agency must:
you written terms of employment before providing any
work-finding services.

they provide services which may be charged for, you must
be given full written details of the service(s) which set out your
rights to cancel or withdraw, together with the length of the
notice period you must give.
an agency charges you for the provision of services such
as accommodation, transport or training – you can cancel or
withdraw from the service at any time without suffering any
penalty. But you must give 10 working days written notice
to the agency to cancel from living accommodation and five
working days notice for all other services.

What an agency can’t do:
 Cannot

withhold payment of wages to you because of your
failure to produce a signed timesheet (but an employment
business does have the opportunity to satisfy itself that you
have actually worked).

 Give

 If

 Pay

 Can’t

you for work you have done, even if they haven’t been
paid by the hiring company. (Note – certain exceptions apply
to agencies operating in entertainment and modelling sectors.)

 Give

you full written details of a job when they offer you a
position with a hirer, including the identity of the hirer, start date,
likely duration of the work, type of work, location, hours, any
risks to health and safety and steps the hirer has taken to control
such risks, experience, training and qualifications needed for the
role, any expenses payable and the actual rate of pay.

An agency can’t charge you for:
 Agencies

cannot charge fees for finding or seeking to find you
work. (Note – certain exceptions apply to agencies operating in
entertainment and modelling sectors.)
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they employ you under a contract for service, you cannot be
penalised for ending an assignment.
stop you from taking a permanent job with a company
where you temped, and they can only charge a fee to the
company in limited circumstances (sometimes called ‘temp to
perm’ fees).

 Your

agency cannot stop you registering with other agencies.

Privacy and personal data issues
 An

agency can’t disclose information about you to third
parties (other than for the purpose of finding work for legal
proceedings or to any professional body of which you are a
member) or to a current employer, without your consent.

 Before

introducing you to a hirer your agency must confirm
your identity and you will be asked to provide documentation
such as your birth certificate or passport, for this purpose.
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Health and safety
 Agencies

have to make enquiries with hirers about any risks to
health and safety.

If you have your own company
 If

you are an incorporated work-seeker (i.e. you have your
own company or work through a limited company), you
are automatically covered by the regulations but you can
choose to give notice to your agency to opt-out before being
introduced to a hirer. Agencies cannot make the provisions
of their work-finding services conditional on an incorporated
work-seeker opting out.

Do remember:
 An

agency cannot guarantee to find you work.

Your rights as an agency worker – other laws
Agency workers are usually considered to be ‘workers’, not
‘employees’. As a ’worker’ you are entitled to employment rights
including:
 Paid
 No

holiday, rest breaks and limits on working time

unlawful deductions from wages

 The

National Minimum Wage

 Not

to be discriminated against under any of the equality
legislation

 Protection

under health and safety laws.

However, ‘workers’, as distinct from employees, are not generally
entitled to redundancy pay or to make a claim for unfair
dismissal. However, for further information of these and other
employment rights, contact Acas whose details are shown at the
back of this leaflet.
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Employment Agency Standards Inspectorate –
what we do
The Employment Agency Standards (EAS) Inspectorate is part
of the Department for Business, Enterprise & Regulatory Reform
(BERR). We are responsible for enforcing the provisions of the
Employment Agencies Act 1973 (the Act) and the associated
Conduct Regulations which govern the private recruitment
industry. The EAS Inspectorate investigates every relevant
complaint it receives about the conduct of an agency which falls
within the scope of the legislation which it enforces.
This legislation sets minimum standards of conduct and is
designed to protect the interests of work-seekers, employers and
hiring companies who use the work-finding services provided by
employment agencies.
EAS Inspectors have powers to enter premises which they
believe are used for employment agency purposes and examine
records and documents kept in accordance with the Act or
Conduct Regulations.
EAS can prosecute employment agencies for breaches of
the legislation and can apply to an Employment Tribunal to
prohibit those found to be unsuitable from carrying on or being
connected with the carrying on of an agency.
There is a dedicated EAS Helpline (0845 955 5105), which
provides advice to workers, agencies, employers and other
interested parties on the legislation and work of the Inspectorate.
For further information about the laws governing employment
agencies visit the websites: www.direct.gov.uk
www.businesslink.gov.uk
www.berr.gov.uk/employment/employment-agencies
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Confidentiality and disclosure

Useful contacts

Every complaint received by the EAS Inspectorate is treated in
confidence and your identity would only be given to the agency if
you gave us written permission to do so. However, in some cases,
such as complaints relating to non-payment of wages, it is not
generally possible to investigate a complaint unless you agree to
let the EAS inform the agency of your identity. If you are unsure
what course of action to take, please contact us for help and advice.

Acas
A public body promoting good workplace relations, providing
free advice on employment rights and contractual matters. Call
the helpline on 08457 474747 or visit www.acas.org.uk

How to make a complaint
If you wish to make a complaint, you can do so by completing
the complaint form on the BERR website, by email to the EAS
Inspectorate’s mailbox, by post or fax or by telephoning the
dedicated helpline – details shown below.

How to get in touch with us
You can write to us at:

Employment Agency Standards Inspectorate
Department for Business, Enterprise & Regulatory Reform
Bay 487
1 Victoria Street
London SW1H 0ET

By phone:
Employment Agency Standards Helpline
For advice about employment agency legislation or if you wish to
complain about an agency, call 0845 955 5105

By email:
eas@berr.gsi.gov.uk or complete the complaint form on the
BERR website at www.berr.gov.uk/employment/employmentagencies/index.html

By fax:
020 7215 0227
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Agricultural Wages Helpline
In England or Wales call
0845 000 0134

In Scotland call
0131 244 6392

Broadcasting Entertainment Cinematograph and Theatre
Union (BECTU)
Independent union representing those working within the British
film industry and related sectors. Call 020 7346 0900 or visit
www.bectu.org.uk
Citizens Advice Bureau
CABs offer free and confidential advice on a range of issues.
For your nearest office look under ‘C’ in your phone book or visit
www.citizensadvice.org.uk
Directgov
For online information on employment rights and responsibilities
visit www.direct.gov.uk/employees
Equality and Human Rights Commission
The Commission provide information and guidance on
discrimination and human rights issues. Visit their website at
www.equalityhumanrights.com or call their offices: England 0845
604 6610, Scotland 0845 604 5510, Wales 0845 604 8810
Equity
Trade union representing performers in the entertainment
industry. For further information and contact details visit
www.equity.org.uk
Gangmasters Licensing Authority
For information about gangmasters and agencies operating in
agriculture or food processing, call 0845 602 5020 or visit
www.gla.gov.uk
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Health and Safety Executive
For concerns about health and safety at work, working hours and
the provision of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), call the
infoline on 0845 345 0055 or visit www.hse.gov.uk

11-19 Fashion Street
London E1 6PX
Tel: 020 7422 0699
(no website but the email address is amainfo@btinternet.com)

HM Revenue & Customs
For advice on tax, National Insurance and sick pay matters visit
www.hmrc.gov.uk Consult your local telephone directory for
your nearest office.

Trades Union Congress
Migrant Workers Project
Congress House
Great Russell Street
London WC1B 3LS

Home Office – UK Border Agency
For information on border control, living and working in the UK
including information on the Worker Registration Scheme visit
www.ukba.homeoffice.gov.uk
Information Commissioner
The UK’s independent authority set up to promote access to official
information under the Freedom of Information Act and to protect
personal information under Data Protection law. For information
and advice call 08456 30 60 60 or visit www.ico.gov.uk
National Minimum Wage Helpline
For more information on how much you should be paid or if
you think your pay is less than the legal minimum, call
0845 6000 678.
Office of the Immigration Services Commissioner (OISC)
The OISC is the UK Government regulator for individuals and
organisations that provide immigration advice and/or services
within the United Kingdom. For further information visit
www.oisc.gov.uk
Recruitment and Employment Confederation (REC)
REC is the main trade association representing the private
recruitment industry. Member agencies have to abide by their
Code of Practice. Visit their website at www.rec.uk.com for
information, including details of their members.
The Association of Model Agents
They can provide information and advice on the modelling
industry.
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‘Know Your Rights’ Line
Tel: 0870 600 4882

In Northern Ireland
Department for Employment and Learning (NI)
Employment Relations Policy and Legislation Branch
Tel: 028 9025 7493
www.delni.gov.uk

Labour Relations Agency (LRA)
Northern Ireland
Tel: 028 9032 1442
www.lra.org.uk
National Minimum Wage Helpline
In Northern Ireland call
0845 6500 207
Northern Ireland Committee of the Irish Congress of Trade
Unions
4-6 Donegall Street Place
Belfast BT1 2FN
Tel: 02890247940
www.ictuni.org
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